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Receipt is acknowledged of your correspondence of September 14th, 2011. The proposed change to the trade-mark, specifically replacing the word “London” with the phrase “Version 2.012” would not be permissible since it would be contrary to Rule 31(b) of the Trade-marks Regulations in that it alters the distinctive character and affects the identify of the trade-mark.
On June 10th, 2010, pursuant to the provisions of subsection 16(3) of the Trade-marks Act (herein referred to as the “Act”), the applicant filed an application for registration of the trade-mark [image: image2.png]


, in association with the wares “men's, women's and youth's clothing, namely t-shirts, shirts, pants, shorts, sweatshirts, sweatpants, tank tops, underwear, socks, jackets, coats, hats; footwear, namely shoes and sandals; sunglasses; sports bags; beach bags; backpacks” and the services “promotion of "NOZI" branded goods of others by displays on an electronic website”.
The objection raised pursuant to the provisions of 12(1)(e) and 9(1)(n)(iii) of the Act with respect to prohibited mark No. 919,978 is hereby withdrawn.

An objection was raised since the subject trade-mark was considered to be a mark the adoption of which is prohibited by paragraph 9(1)(j) of the Act.  Therefore in view of the provisions of paragraph 12(1)(e), this mark did not appear to be registrable since it was considered that a not insignificant segment of the Canadian public would, upon first impression, view the subject mark as scandalous, obscene or immoral.

Paragraph 9(1)(j) of the Act reads as follows:

9. (1) No person shall adopt in connection with a business, as a trade-mark or otherwise, any mark consisting of, or so nearly resembling as to be likely to be mistaken for,


(j) any scandalous, obscene or immoral word or device;

The issue as to whether the applicant's trade-mark is scandalous must be considered from the point of view of the average Canadian of average education in English and/or French upon his or her first impression of the mark.  A word or mark is considered scandalous if it would be offensive to a segment of the public sense of propriety.  In this respect, your attention is directed to the words of Mr. Justice Evershed in Oomphies Trade Mark (1946), 64 R.P.C. 27 at page 30:

I must wholeheartedly accept the proposition that it is the duty of the Registrar (and it is my hope that he will always fearlessly exercise it) to consider not merely the general taste of the time, but also the susceptibilities of persons, by no means few in number, who still may be regarded as old fashioned and, if he is of the opinion that the feelings or susceptibilities of such people will be offended, he will properly consider refusal of the registration.

It is submitted that the mark as a whole, being NAZI LONDON when sounded, contravenes paragraph 9(1)(j) of the Act in that it is a scandalous phrase.  I am of the opinion that a not insignificant segment of the Canadian public would view the use of the term NAZI in the subject mark as offensive.  Consequently, since I have come to the conclusion that the subject mark is unregistrable in view of paragraph 12(1)(e) of the Act, pursuant to the authority delegated to me under subsection 63(3) of the Act, this application is refused pursuant to paragraph 37(1)(b) of the Act.

Under Section 56 of the Act, an appeal from this decision lies to the Federal Court of Canada within two months from the date this notice is dispatched or within such further time as the Court may allow either before or after the expiry of two months.

Yours sincerely,
Lisa Power

Director General, Trade-marks
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